
SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND 
LAESCYP MEETING

4.00 pm MONDAY, 22ND FEBRUARY, 2016

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
as it will only be used for training purposes by the

Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering 
the Chamber and using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public 

are consenting to being filmed.

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 
(01685) 725203 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members of this Committee are reminded of their 
personal responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s 
Constitution and the Members Code of Conduct.  
In addition, Members must declare any prohibited 
party whip which the Member has been given in 
relation to the meeting as per the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2011.  

Note:

a. Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest; and 

b. Where Members withdraw from a meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave. 

3. School Balances 2015/16 
See attached report (Pages 1 - 8)

4. Performance Board Action Points - Parental 
Engagement 
Standing item. To receive updates on areas for 
improvement; 1) Parental Engagement (Lead Officer 
Sarah Bowen); 2) More Able and Talented Pupils 
(Dorothy Haines); 3) Governance & Governing Bodies 
(Dorothy Haines); 4) Collaboration (Dorothy Haines); 
and 5) Corporate Support Services (Glynis Estabanez). 
(These were identified in the Performance Board report 
to Learning & LAESCYP meeting on 25th January 
2016). Numbers 1 to 4 managed by this scrutiny 
committee; and 5) by the Governance Scrutiny 
Committee.

(Pages 9 - 18)

5. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 
To receive any referrals from the other Scrutiny 
Committees and Audit Committee; an update from 
the Chair on their attendance at the Service 
Performance Challenge Meetings and to consider 
any follow up actions from the previous 
Meeting(s).



6. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair

7. Forward Work Programme 
See attached report. (Pages 19 - 40)

8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillor L Mytton (Chair)

Councillors: S Williams, M Davies, G Lewis, K Moran, 
S Slater and C Tovey

Co-optee(s): C Brown, M Harris, A Rees and R Lazell

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725203

Os byddai’n well gennych gopi o’r agenda hwn mewn iaith arall, cysylltwch a 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01685 725203

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk
mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

SCHOOL BALANCES 2015/16
1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 The report provides an update regarding projected schools balances for the year 
ending 31st March 2016.

1.2 More robust financial monitoring by schools and the local authority has led to 
improvements. 

 School balances are projected to increase from £214k at 2014/15 year end to £403k.   All 
nine schools categorised at significant and high levels of risk are complying with the 
requirements of financial notice of concern and all are currently on track to deliver year-
end balances in line with their approved budgets.

 No schools are projected to end the year with an unplanned deficit.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That Scrutiny considers the content of this report.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Cabinet approved a financial monitoring policy for schools on 29th July 2015.  The policy 
was drawn up because of the low level of school balances at 31st March 2014 and 31st 
March 2015, and the high number of schools ending those financial years in deficit (ten 
and nine respectively).

3.2 Nine schools were classified at high or significant financial risk for 2015/16 under the 
new policy and were issued with notices of financial concern during the Autumn Term 
which outlined the requirements that governing bodies must comply with in adherence to 
the new policy.

Date Written 12th February 2016
Report Author Anthony Lewis
Service Area LAESCYP
Committee Date 22nd February 2016

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3.3 Cabinet also approved a policy to direct the use of schools balances above the 
regulatory thresholds of £50k for Nursery/Primary schools and £100k for 
Secondary/Special schools. The policy requires schools to spend their excess balances 
in year 1, enables the local authority to direct spend in year 2 and to clawback the 
excess balances in year 3.

3.4 Three schools ended the financial year 2014/15 with excess surplus balances and are 
subject to the requirements of this new policy in the current financial year 2015/16.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE IN 2014-15

4.1 Schools at Financial Risk  

Table 1 shows the 2014/15 year-end balance of the schools at financial risk and their 
budgeted year-end balance for 2015/16.

Table 1: Schools at significant (BROWN) or high (RED) financial risk in 2015/16

School Risk category 2014-15 
Balance £000s

2015-16 
Balance £000s

Afon Taf High School (PLD) BROWN -342 -300

Pantysgallog Primary 
School (PLD)

RED -35 +14

Abercanaid Community 
Primary School (PLD)

RED -32 + 2

St Aloysius Primary School 
(U)

RED -22 +1

Goetre Primary School (U) RED -19 +33

Edwardsville Primary 
School (U)

RED -18 +12

Caedraw Primary School 
(U)

RED -16 +20

Trelewis Primary School 
(U)

RED -15 +16

Cyfarthfa High School 
(PLD)

RED + 91 -60

TOTAL 1 BROWN
8 RED

-408 -262

PLD – Planned Licensed Deficit approved by the local authority
U – Unplanned deficit, not licensed by the local authority

4.2      Deficits 

Pantysgallog Primary and Abercanaid Community schools received approval for a 
licensed deficit in 2014/15, and planned to deliver surplus balances in 2015/16 as part of 
this plan. 

Page 2



Afon Taf High School also received approval for a licensed deficit in 2014/15 and 
planned to recover to a sustainable financial position by 2017/18 due to the size of the 
deficit to be recovered.

Cyfarthfa High School ended 2014/15 with a surplus balance that had reduced by £76k 
from the previous year.  The school then required a licensed deficit in 2015/16 which set 
out a recovery plan to deliver a sustainable financial position for the school from 2017/18. 

The other five schools ended 2014/15 with a deficit balance that they had not planned for 
as part of their budget setting processes and for which local authority approval had not 
been sought.  Four of these schools (St Aloysius Primary, Goetre Primary, Caedraw 
Primary and Trelewis Primary) had ended with an unplanned deficit balance for two 
consecutive financial years (2013/14 and 2014/15). Edwardsville Primary, had ended 
2013/14 with a surplus balance.

4.3 Schools with Surplus Balances above thresholds

Table 2 details the schools that held balances in excess of the regulatory thresholds at 
31st March 2015 and the size of the excess balance held

Table 2: Schools with excess surplus balances 2014/15 

School 2014-15 Balance 
£000s

Excess Balance 
£000s

Gellifaelog Primary + 81 + 31

Ynysowen Primary           + 71             + 21

Pen Y Dre High School         + 116             + 16

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 Surplus balances (reserves)

The current position of schools’ projected balances for 2015/16 is shown in Appendix 1.  
This shows that overall balances are now expected to be £403k by 2015/16 year-end, 
which is higher than the planned surplus balance, and significantly higher than the 
aggregate balances of £213k that were held at the end of 2014/15.

The increase is because 15 schools are projecting to end the year with balances above 
those in their approved budgets while a further five schools are projecting to end the year 
with their planned surplus balance.  However, eight schools are projecting to end the 
year with a smaller surplus balance than planned. 

In 2014/15 three schools ended the year with surplus balances above the agreed 
thresholds.  All three schools are on track to deliver surplus balances within the 
thresholds and have had their surplus balances spending plans approved by the local 
authority.  

Three schools are projecting balances in excess of the regulatory thresholds at 31st 
March 2016.  All four schools will be reminded of the policy on holding surplus balances 
above regulatory thresholds and advised that they will be expected to agree a plan to 
spend these balances with the governing body and the local authority as part of the 
school’s budget setting process for 2016/17.Page 3



Table 3: Schools projecting to hold an excess surplus balance at financial year-end 
2015/16 

School 2015-16 Balance 
£000s

Excess Balance 
£000s

Gurnos Nursery + 65 + 25

St Mary’s Primary            + 70             + 20

Ysgol Santes Tudful            + 60             + 10

5.2 Schools at Financial Risk

The nine schools identified at high or significant financial risk have adhered to the 
requirements of the financial monitoring policy and all are currently on track to deliver 
year-end balances in line with their approved budgets.

No schools are currently projecting that they will end the financial year with an unplanned 
and unlicensed deficit.  However, in six schools the surplus balance may be less than 1% 
and less that 2% in a further seven schools.

A report on schools balances 2015/16 was presented to Audit Committee on 1st February 
2016 in line with the policy.  The next update is due in July 2016 and they are scheduled 
on a six monthly basis. 

5.3 The effectiveness of local authority monitoring and challenge processes

Financial monitoring of all schools has led to improvements in the financial management 
of schools’ budgets compared to 2014-15. 
 Only two schools are projected to end the year with a budget deficit. 
 The projected overall surplus balance has increased from 0.6% to 1.1%, although 

this is below the local authority benchmark target of 3%.
 Nine schools are projected to end the year with a surplus balance of between 2-

4% of the compared to six in 2014-15.

Further work needs to be done to enable all schools to manage their resources and 
business processes effectively, efficiently and economically in order to secure better 
outcomes for pupils.

5.4 Pupil led funding review update

Following a consideration of the pupil-led funding, the Schools Forum is not 
recommending any changes to the funding methodology for pupil-led factors within the 
Nursery/Primary and Secondary sectors.  The Schools Forum supported amendments to 
the principles of pupil-led funding for Nursery/Primary and Secondary sectors, which will 
be incorporated into a wider local authority review that considers a more equitable 
allocation of resources across the whole formula funding.

Page 4



The principles are as follows:

 All lump sum funding should be streamlined into one single lump sum and graduated 
in relation to pupil numbers rather than a set amount for primary schools and another 
set amount for secondary schools; 

 The basis for funding for pupils with Special Educational Needs should be reviewed. 
The funding is currently based on the percentage of pupils eligible for Free School 
Meals.

The Schools Forum is making a recommendation in relation to the pupil-led funding for 
the special sector.  The Schools Forum Task and Finish Group concluded that the use of 
a place-led factor to allocate funding for teaching staff disadvantages the special sector 
because the funding is insufficient to employ the number of teachers needed to meet the 
needs of the pupils. 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 We aim to undertake effective financial monitoring, scrutiny and challenge, in order to 
ensure that all schools are effective, efficient and economical in their use of resources.  
Good resource management in schools is the result of effective leadership and 
governance.  Estyn describes good resource management in the following terms:
 Staffing and financial resources are managed and deployed effectively to support 

learning improvement;
 The impact of resources on teaching and learning is kept under review and future 

needs are planned for;
 The school’s spending decisions relate well to priorities for improvement and the 

benefit of the pupils;
 The pupil deprivation grant is well spent; and;
 The use of shared resources through efficient partnership work or federation 

provides good value for money because it contributes to improved and generally 
good outcomes for pupils in aspects which the school alone could not provide.

6.2 The key measures of success to demonstrate this will be:
 No schools with an unplanned financial deficit;
 All schools with a licensed deficit deliver against their recovery plan and balance their 

budget in line with their Medium Term Financial Plan;
 All schools with a surplus balance in excess of thresholds will successfully deliver 

their excess balances spending plan; and;
 No school will hold excess balances for three consecutive years which would require 

local authority clawback.

6.3 In the longer term the key measures will be:
 No schools will require a licensed deficit;
 All schools hold balances within the statutory thresholds of £50k (Primary/Nursery) 

and £100k (Secondary/Special);
 Aggregate schools’ balances held at the financial year-end will be between 2% – 4% 

(of formula funding), with 3% representing the local authority benchmark target; and
 Each school holds balances at the financial year end of between 2% – 4% and within 

the statutory thresholds.

Page 5



6.4 Next steps for budget setting
 All schools must set their 2016/17 budget by the statutory deadline of 31st May 2016.  

This will include agreeing a provisional MTFP covering three financial periods 2016-
2019.

 Any school requesting a licensed deficit for 2016/17 will be required to submit their 
application with their governing body approved budget by 31st May 2016. The local 
authority will consider approval for any planned deficits, including any amendments, 
by 30th June 2016.

 Schools with excess balances will be asked to submit spending plans for the use of 
these balances as part of their budget processes by 31st May 2016. If the local 
authority is required to issue a directive to spend then it will do so by 30th June 2016.

6.5 Next steps for improving financial management in schools
 Continue to monitor identified schools until the risk categorisation is updated. 
 Categorise schools for financial risk during June 2016 and advise schools.
 Develop for all schools a grant spend and exit strategy template to support planning 

and challenge by school leadership.
 Develop a more extensive use of benchmark information for and with headteachers 

and governors to support sound financial and staff planning.

LORRAINE BUCK
CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF PEOPLE
AND PERFORMANCE

COUNCILLOR HARVEY JONES
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR LIFELONG 

LEARNING

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Report to LAESCYP 
Scrutiny on School 
Budgets

7th September 2015 Intranet / Internet

Report to Audit 
Committee on School 
Balances

1st February 2016 Intranet / Internet

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 6



APPENDIX I

£ % £ % £ % 
NURSERY SCHOOLS
GURNOS NURSERY -8,108 -2.34% 40,000 11.26% 65,000 18.29%
TOTALS -8,108 -2.34% 40,000 11.26% 65,000 18.29%
PRIMARY SCHOOLS
ABERCANAID COMMUNITY -32,491 -4.67% 5,993 0.86% 6,647 0.96%
BEDLINOG COMMUNITY PRIMARY 9,783 2.15% 8,000 1.78% 8,000 1.78%
CAEDRAW PRIMARY -15,940 -1.94% 21,912 2.55% 8,000 0.93%
CYFARTHFA PARK PRIMARY 43,726 6.67% 37,167 3.29% 17,843 1.58%
DOWLAIS PRIMARY 27,029 3.19% 27,839 3.29% 34,079 4.03%
EDWARDSVILLE PRIMARY -17,910 -1.32% 4,794 0.34% 10,000 0.71%
YSGOL GYNRADD COED Y DDERWEN 42,657 5.29% 56,337 6.80% 36,000 4.34%
GELLIFAELOG PRIMARY 80,977 9.10% 44,376 4.91% 47,226 5.23%
GOETRE PRIMARY -18,760 -1.16% 15,889 0.94% 48,000 2.85%
GWAUNFARREN PRIMARY 11,849 1.29% 21,141 2.39% 21,661 2.45%
HEOLGERRIG PRIMARY 33,729 4.61% 17,615 2.32% 17,015 2.25%
PANTYSGALLOG PRIMARY -35,023 -4.58% 9,266 1.21% 13,806 1.81%
ST ILLTYD'S R.C. PRIMARY 23,645 3.87% 6,000 0.94% 6,000 0.94%
ST ALOYSIUS R.C. PRIMARY -21,731 -3.53% 4,039 0.64% 13,000 2.07%
ST MARY'S R.C. PRIMARY 10,182 1.61% 50,000 7.15% 70,000 10.01%
TRELEWIS PRIMARY -14,910 -1.99% 13,000 1.69% 13,000 1.69%
TROEDYRHIW PRIMARY 21,201 2.69% 24,000 3.09% 35,000 4.51%
TWYNYRODYN COMMUNITY 23,975 2.13% 10,820 0.92% 13,800 1.17%
YNYSOWEN COMMUNITY 71,030 6.40% 48,187 4.41% 32,930 3.01%
YSGOL Y GRAIG PRIMARY 9,662 1.21% 15,000 1.87% 15,000 1.87%
YSGOL RHYD Y GRUG 12,333 1.63% 40,077 4.77% 30,000 3.57%
YSGOL SANTES TUDFUL 1,245 0.09% 49,000 3.46% 60,000 4.24%
TOTALS 266,261 1.36% 530,452 2.65% 557,006 2.78%

SECONDARY SCHOOLS
AFON TAF HIGH -341,666 -9.84% -300,050 -8.64% -298,000 -8.58%
BISHOP HEDLEY HIGH 70,606 3.04% 24,624 1.04% 24,624 1.04%
CYFARTHFA HIGH 91,101 1.79% -69,092 -1.40% -40,000 -0.81%
PEN-Y-DRE HIGH 116,385 3.88% 35,267 1.21% 83,000 2.84%
TOTALS -63,574 -0.46% -309,251 -2.26% -230,376 -1.68%

SPECIAL SCHOOL
GREENFIELD SPECIAL 19,160 0.78% 75,074 2.87% 12,000 0.46%
TOTALS 19,160 0.78% 75,074 2.87% 12,000 0.46%

GRAND TOTALS 213,739 0.59% 336,275 0.92% 403,630 1.10%

2014/15 Actual
2015/16 Approved        

Budget
Projected Outturn 

Position

SCHOOL BALANCES 2015/16

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Performance Board Action Points - Parental 
Engagement 
1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report provides an update on the progress being made in relation to improving 
parental engagement in pupils’ learning.

1.2 Schools and the local authority are undertaking a number of actions to improve 
parental engagement especially with those parents that have not been reached in 
the past.

1.3 The key next step is to agree with schools the measures that will be used to inform 
future planning and to evaluate the impact of the actions taken.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That Scrutiny considers the content of this report.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 “Research tells us that parents and carers have a vital role to play in supporting their 
child’s education and that the home environment is the single biggest factor in 
educational attainment.” (Huw Lewis May 2014).

Date Written February 8th 2016 
Report Author Sarah Bowen 
Service Area Schools Department 
Committee Date 22nd February 2016

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



3.2 Teachers can lack the confidence and knowledge to work with parents, and schools 
may not always recognise or value the ways in which parents are already engaged 
with their children’s’ learning. 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE

4.1 Most parents support their pupils learning, but schools realise the importance of 
engaging further with parents and of the need to improve the understanding of how 
parents can better support their children.  Schools have reported that engaging with 
some groups has been a challenge and will be area of focus for the future.  Some 
schools are successful in enabling parents to be fully engaged in their child’s 
learning and their good practice can be shared and developed with other schools.

There is inconsistency in the approaches taken by schools to improve parental 
engagement in learning and schools generally do not collect sufficient data on the 
impact of the actions they take, especially in relation to the impact on academic 
outcomes. 

4.2 As a result, in the self-evaluation report for 2014-15 two priorities were identified in 
order to improve pupils’ well-being and the impact on their attainment:

 Promote greater parental engagement and involvement in education and the 
school, specifically targeting those parents that the schools and the local 
authority have failed to reach.

 Evaluate the impact of actions taken to improve attitudes in relation to behaviour, 
parental engagement and physical activity participation in and out of school.

5.0 WHERE WE ARE

5.1 The inclusion service has provided support, advice and guidance to all schools 
through a half-termly Newsletter.  One example of resources available to schools is 
the Welsh Government Family and Community Engagement Toolkit (FaCE).  The 
aim of this toolkit is to indicate how FaCE can be used to enable schools to meet its 
improvement targets and “education begins at home campaign”.

Schools have been encouraged to join the Parental Engagement Network, which 
operates across local authorities.  During the autumn term a Parental Engagement 
Network event was hosted in Cyfarthfa High School where schools were able to 
show case the good work that they had been involved with. (Appendix 1)

Training on the Structured Conversation (Appendix 2) been rolled out to ten schools.

5.2 As part of the Adult Community Learning service, Jayne Powney has provided a 
number of Family Learning programmes, which are aimed at supporting adults, 
develop effective literacy, numeracy and language skills so they can function 
effectively and confidently in their daily life and support the needs of their children. 
The impact of the various programmes offered can be found in Appendix 3. 

5.3 Schools are involved in different programmes, which focus on improving parental 
engagement. These include:

Page 10



 Family Learning Signature (Appendix 4);
 Families And Schools Together (FAST) - To date four schools have run this 

programme, Goetre, Bedlinog, Troedyrhiw and Gwaunfarren. All schools involved 
have reported good recruitment rates of those parents involved and an 
improvement in behaviour and engagement in school. (Appendix 5);

 Investors in Families (IiF) - supports schools to maximise the fundamental 
importance that families play in helping to shape and educate their children.  As 
of July 2014 nine schools had received accreditation and a further ten were 
registered to start this process. (Appendix 6).

5.4 The local authority is also providing advice, guidance and support in relation to 
meeting the specific needs of the parents of particular groups of pupils i.e. pupils that 
have English as and Additional Language (EAL), Gypsy Travellers and those with 
Additional Learning Needs (ALN). 

 Pupils with EAL.
 Good links have been established between Focal Point, a community 

engagement group and Education colleagues to ensure that the particular 
needs of this group are met. 

 A good practice visit to Stacey Road school, in Cardiff was undertaken, where 
the percentage of pupils who have EAL needs fluctuates between 60-70%, 
and information gathered has been shared with schools.  

 Pupils with ALN.
 Training has been delivered by the Headteacher of Greenfield Special School 

to both LA officers and schools in order to understand the parental 
perspective. (Appendix 7)

 Gypsy Travellers.
 a more coordinated and collaborative approach has been adopted across the 

LA to further improve relationships with this group, especially with regards to 
making more effective use of the community centre on the Glyn Mil Site.  

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE

6.1 Our ambition is to be ranked within the top 10 local authorities in Wales by 2017 by 
ensuring improved levels of inclusion and wellbeing for all children and young 
people. This would be achieved through:

 Primary school attendance of 95.5%;
 Secondary school attendance target of 94.5%;
 No permanent  exclusions; and;
 Reduction in fixed term exclusions to:

 35 exclusions per 1,000 for 5 days or fewer.
 2.5 exclusions per 1,000 for 6 days or more.

Page 11



7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

 To agree with schools the measures that will be used to inform future planning 
and to evaluate the impact of the actions taken;

 To share and review the Strategy for Parental Engagement with all schools;
 To strengthen links with Focal Point as a way to further support pupils for whom 

English is an Additional Language;
 To explore opportunities of taking part in an international project focusing upon 

“Inter-generational Art and Music” as a way to improve literacy and numeracy.

LORRAINE BUCK
CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF PEOPLE
AND PERFORMANCE

COUNCILLOR HARVEY JONES
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR LIFELONG 

LEARNING

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 

Page 12



Appendix 1 Parental Engagement Event Cyfarthfa High School 12/10/15

 Cyfarthfa High School is providing more opportunities for involving parents in the 
school such as working alongside their children.  As a result, there has been 
improvement in behaviour and a reduction in exclusions. 

 Gellifaelog Primary School employs a Family Liaison Officer in order to raise the 
profile of attendance.  As a result, there has been a reduction in persistent 
absentees and an improvement in attendance including that for Gypsy Travellers. 

 Caedraw Primary utilises the information gathered by their parent survey and 
reported that parents felt more informed of their child’s progress and more able to 
provide support. 

Appendix 2 Structured Conversation  

The structured conversation approach requires schools to give teachers time away from the 
classroom for a series of focused, managed conversations between teacher, parent and 
child.  The aim is to raise the child’s academic achievement and enhance their chances of 
success.  Teachers learn how to recap a conversation, summarise complex or convoluted 
points that both sides understand and set targets that parent/carer, teacher and child sign 
up to.  These are then reviewed at a later meeting.  Through structured conversation, 
schools are able to develop effective partnerships with parents/carers, getting them more 
involved in their children’s learning, developing effective learning targets and developing 
more individualised approaches to learning.

Appendix 3 Family Learning Programmes 2014-15

The agreed Communication & Number Plan contains five aims.  Detailed below are outlines 
of the progress made against the strategy during 2014-2015 in relation to aims 1, 2 and 4, 
as these specifically relate to parental engagement.

Aim 1 - Individuals to maximise their own potential and support the children in   their care to 
achieve.

A series of non-accredited workshops and short courses (under 12 hours) have been 
delivered to support the school curriculum, and accredited literacy and numeracy courses 
(over 12 hours) have been delivered within school and community settings.  

During 2014-2015, 506 learners have participated on courses to develop their basic skills 
with 173 enrolling on accredited courses, and 120 learners achieving a qualification.

Impact - 69% of the 173 learners enrolled on accredited courses gained qualifications 

Tracking systems have been established which demonstrate that from the total of 120 
individuals, engaged on accredited courses from September 2014 to July 2015, 39% have 
accessed employment , further education, training or volunteering opportunities (6).  

Page 13



Aim 2 - A high level of individual wellbeing is enjoyed by ensuring appropriate support is 
available for learners to maximise learning opportunities

Links have been established with 20 new partner agencies to support their provision and 
client group with basic skills

Social and  Emotional Aspects of Learning  (SEAL) short courses were delivered at 
Gellifaelog and Goetre Primary Schools in partnership with Education Department to 
support the PASS system used in schools to identify children’s wellbeing in readiness to 
‘Prepare them for Learning’.  17 Parents of children with low PASS scores were invited to 
attend the short course to learn ways to support their children whilst in turn working on their 
own skills.

Impact - 99% of parents who participated on SEAL acknowledged positive impacts the 
programme has had on their understanding of their child’s needs in relation to preparing 
them for learning.

Aim 4 - Build closer links with primary and secondary schools as a means of developing 
Intergenerational Skills

Two reading cafés were held at Goetre Primary working in partnership with Pen y Dre 
Cluster Family & Education Officer, and 17 adults engaged.  These families have 
progressed onto an after school club with 3Gs continuing the reading café model.

Impact - Evaluation forms identify that 98% of parents reported that their knowledge to 
support their children’s learning had improved.  

Family Learning staff have undertaken, during September 2014, RWI intensive 1:1 training 
which will enhance programme delivery.  Workshops are delivered to parents to enable 
them to improve their knowledge on their child’s progression / developments.  

Impact - Evaluation forms identify that 96% of parents reported that their knowledge to 
support their children’s learning had improved relating to Read, Write, Inc. strategy

Appendix 4 Family Learning Signature 

The Family Learning Signature is designed to help education authorities to improve 
attainment, attendance and behaviour, particularly with hard to reach families and 
disengaged learners.

The Family Learning Signature data provides a picture of family learning capacity including 
where families require assistance to support learning, where they have the capacity to learn 
more for themselves and to identify future, disengaged learners and families at an early 
stage.

The Family Learning Signature delivers

Page 14



 Data to support the effective targeting of resources and interventions to ensure the 
right support meets the right families;

 Increased family engagement and ownership of the process resulting in more 
effective intervention and outcomes;

 Reinforced social cohesion by extending the reach of the school and engaging all 
members of the family.

The family learning signature is a great opportunity for families to come together and spend 
time discussing their learning strengths and needs. It encourages families to take a moment 
to realise and be proud of what they do well as a family and also highlights what could they 
could improve.  There are no right or wrong answers and no perfect results. 

A fundamental principle of the process is that a family creates and owns its Signature. 

In Hull, where they have taken a city-wide approach to the deployment of the Family 
Learning Signature, they have experienced:
• An 18.3% drop in the absence rate;
• A 40.7% drop in the number of persistent absentees;
• A 15% increase in the number of students achieving 5 grades A-C at GCSE  (including 

English and maths);
• A significant improvement in the relative performance of children eligible for free school

Meals.

Appendix 5 Behaviour and relationships: the FAST programme 
Families and Schools Together (FAST) is an evidence-based parenting programme. In 
2010 Save the Children piloted the FAST programme in five primary schools in Ealing, 
Manchester, West Belfast, West Dunbartonshire and Caerphilly. 

The FAST programme has three aims: 
1. to help children succeed at school by improving their behaviour, supporting better 

home–school relationships, and improving their educational achievement in reading, 
writing and maths.

2. to strengthen families by improving attachment between parents and their children, 
improving communication and building parents’ confidence.

3. to strengthen communities by building trust between parents and reducing social 
isolation. 

The programme has three phases. During the first phase, focused on community outreach, 
a multi-agency team is set up to deliver the programme and build a supportive community 
around the school.  The team includes FAST facilitators, parents with children at the school, 
members of staff from that school and community-based partners such as health and social 
workers, and other members of the community.  The team then recruits families to 
participate voluntarily. 

The second phase includes an eight-week course designed to help build relationships 
between parents and their children, parents and the school, and parents and other parents. 
Each weekly session includes: 

Page 15



 a meal shared as a family;
 communication games played between the family;
 time for parents to talk to other parents;
 a self-help peer-support session (without children present);
 one-to-one time between parent and child;
 a fixed lottery, which each family wins once, in which they receive a hamper of 

goods to help them support their child’s learning at home, followed by a closing 
game for the whole group. 

During the third phase parents meet every month for 22 months. Parents who have 
graduated from an eight-week FAST course plan and lead these meetings with support 
from the school.  This ensures that relationships and networks developed during the 
programme are sustained. 

Appendix 6 Investors in Families

What is Investors in Families?
Investors in Families (IiF) aims to help schools or any setting where young people learn to 
become family friendly in the context of:
 The evidence (Charles Desforges and others) that children’s attainment will rise more 

dramatically when their learning at school is reinforced at home in the family context 
through informal activities.  The desire for families to become partners with schools, in 
their children’s learning.  Closing the gap between social disadvantage and 
achievement;

 Investors in Families is an award that schools can gain every three years upon 
submission of a portfolio of evidence and a visit from an assessor.

 Investors in Families is a scheme with national standards that are locally accredited but 
quality assured centrally.

The aims of Investors in Families:
 To value and support the important role that families play in the life of the child.
 To promote social inclusion and a sense of wellbeing through positive participation in 

the child’s education.
 To provide a structure for schools to demonstrate their commitment to the Rights to 

Action agenda.
 To encourage a whole school approach to this way of working.
 To enable schools to network and share good practice.

Appendix 7 Strategies for working with families of children with learning difficulties 
and disabilities as identified by Greenfield Special School 

Understand family life
Appreciating and respecting the extra work it takes for families to care for and educate 
children with special needs is important.  Supportive teachers and learning support staff can 
help ease parents’ stress, whether it is implementing daily therapies or offering a 
sympathetic listener’s ear.  Some parents may not be aware of all the services needed to 

Page 16



meet their child’s needs or be able to afford them.  Thus, informing families about resources 
in the community and how to access them is an important teacher contribution.

Learn about the disability
It is crucial to learn as much as you can about the individual child.  The child’s family may 
be the best resource for information, as well as the child’s other teachers, learning support 
staff, pediatricians, and therapists.

Communicate frequently with families
As is true with families of all children, ongoing two-way communication between teachers 
and families is key in working successfully with families of children with learning difficulties 
and disabilities.  Find out as much as possible about the child and the family’s goals for 
their child’s learning and development, and tell parents how you design your program to 
meet individual children’s needs.

For non-English-speaking families, obtain translation services through your school, other 
family members, or the community. Use graphics or icons to convey information in your 
written communication (Al-Hassan & Gardner 2002).

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance for the next scrutiny committee meeting.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The Committee considers its work programme and approve, revise or amend it as 
deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions above in planning for the next 
meeting.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND
3.1 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda. 

3.2 At each meeting the committee will agree the agenda items for their next meeting 
and in preparation may in advance wish to ask itself the following questions.

Q) Why has the item been placed on a scrutiny work programme?
a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan 

and priorities?
b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns?
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest?
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications?

Date Written 12th January 2016
Report Author Scrutiny Section
Service Area Legal & Governance Services
Committee Division Scrutiny 
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 22nd February 2016

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 
difference and achieve tangible outcomes?

f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 
resources?

Q) What is the specific role of the committee?
           This will depend on the item – for example the role could be:

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department

b. to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose
c. to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue 
d. to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation / review
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue

Q) What outcome is the committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item?

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council 

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes.
c. To receive an overview presentation.
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work. 

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the corporate plan / other plan / other strategy.

g. Improvement in service delivery

Q) What information does the committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome? 
What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions.

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information?
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police,  Health Board etc

Q) Does the committee need to ask for written representations?
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting. 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend?
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 

Page 20



community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc.

3.3 Committees members will be aware that the Council has seven key priorities as per 
the Corporate Plan. These are:- 1) Raising Standards of Attainment; 2) 
Employability;  3) Economic Development;  4) Promoting Active Lifestyles;  5) 
Promoting Independence; 6) Meeting the Needs of Vulnerable Children and 7)  A 
Sustainable Environment.

The seven Council priority areas are delivered through 4 themes, and each of the 4 
Chief Officers has ownership and responsibility for one of these themes. The 4 
themes are:-

 Raising Standards - (Chief Officer for Learning/ Cabinet member for 
Learning) 
Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee

 Improving Wellbeing - (Chief Officer for Social Services / Cabinet member 
for Social Services)
Social Services Scrutiny Committee

 Economic Growth - (Chief Officer for Community Regeneration / Cabinet 
member for Regeneration, Planning and Countryside)
Regeneration, Planning & Countryside Scrutiny Committee

 Sustainable Development - (Chief Officer for Neighbourhood Services / 
Cabinet member for Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection)
Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee

3.4 To reflect the 4 themes as per above in a convenient form, 4 “strategies on a page” 
have been developed and each reflects Measures of Success; Desired Outcomes 
and Strategic Aims and Objectives.

3.5 Much of Scrutiny committee work programme activity is aligned to the delivery of the 
Council’s corporate priorities and the “strategies of a page” can assist scrutiny 
committees in this role. See appendix I for the “strategies of a page”.

3.6 A copy of the Committees work programme is also attached.

Scrutiny Section
MTCBC

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? No

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Measures of Success

Raising Standards

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims 

All learners attain at least
the expected standard at all

stages in their education

Vision:

AIM 1: Improve the quality of
leadership including the leadership
of learning and teaching

AIM 2: Improve LA and
commissioned services

Leadership in all schools
is good or better

All members of the
education community

collaborate well in order
to improve the standards
and wellbeing of pupils

Teaching in all schools
is good or better

LA provision improves 
standards of attainment 

and the quality of
leadership and teaching 

in schools

P
age 23



Specific Measurable Outcomes - Measures of Success

Improving Wellbeing

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims & Objectives:

Social Services:
- Children
- Adults
- Safeguarding

We will help people in
Merthyr Tydfil to maximise their
potential, be free from poverty,

be independent and healthy
and to live in supportive and

resilient communities.
People in Merthyr Tydfil 

will be able to lead 
independent and 

fulfilled lives.
Vulnerable children in 

Merthyr Tydfil live 
healthy, safe and fulfilled 

lives.

People in Merthyr Tydfil 
are physically active and 

as a result have 
improved health.

Vision:

P
age 24



Economic	  Growth	  Plan	  
	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  Vision	  	  	  	  

Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Business	  Base	  	   Baseline	  
	  (year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Labour	  Market	  	   Baseline	  

(year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   Skills	  	   Baseline	  
(year)	   Target	  	  

Key	  Indicator	  	   Count	  of	  birth	  of	  new	  
enterprises	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Economic	  Ac@vity,	  

Unitary	  Authori@es	  in	  
Wales	  	  

27833	  (2011)	   30000	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Level	  2	  Skills	  	   6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Births	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Average	  Gross	  Weekly	  

Earnings	  	   £477.60	  
(2014)	   £500	   	  	   Indicator	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  level	  2	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  	  	  

6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Deaths	  	   135	  (2013)	   100	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Claimant	  Count	  Levels	  	   1,100	  (Mar	  2015)	   900	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  no	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  

9963	   9000	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Gross	  Disposal	  
Household	  Income	  Per	  
Head	  	  	  

£13,500	   £14000	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	   Unemployment	  Levels	  
16	  +	  	   2000	   1600	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Economic	  InacLvity	  
Levels	  16-‐64	  year	  olds	   7,900	   7,300	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

 

AIM 1: Develop a diverse 
and vibrant business 

base 

	  	  

AIM 2: Create a flexible, 
resilient and responsive 

labour market 	  

 
 

AIM 3:  Increase the 
quality and skills within 
the existing and future 

workforce necessary for 
effective business growth  

	  	  

 
 

AIM 4: Improve and create 
the right infrastructure to 

enable and accelerate 
business growth   

	  	  

Measurable	  Outcomes	  	  

Desired	  Outcomes	  	  

P
age 25



A Sustainable Environment

Vision
People in Merthyr Tydfil 
will live in communities 
that are sustainable, clean 
and energy efficient. 

Waste Management
Energy Management
Environmental Quality  - Cleaning / Fly Tipping / Litter
           - Air Quality
           - Noise

Flood Management
Planning & Countryside
Wildlife & Biodiversity
Parks & Open SpacesSpecific Measurable Outcomes - ‘Scores on Doors’

  - Measure of Success

Strategic Aims & Objectives -

Desired Outcomes -

Creation of more
‘Greener’ jobs

P
age 26



Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16
           (Please note that the Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

 (Work programme Version November 2016)

15 June 
2015

13 July 
2015

7 September 
2015

5 October 
2015

2 November 
2015

Corporate Items Governing Bodies Annual 
report 

Heolgerrig & PenyDre 
Lessons Learned Report 

Categorisation of Schools Commissioning the 
Consortium

Central South 
Consortium

Schools Attendance At 
Scrutiny

Key Stages 1 to 3 Pupil 
Outcomes

LAESCYP Self-Evaluation 
in advance of the 
monitoring visit 

Policy Review & 
Development

Monitoring 
Reports /  
Briefing Reports 
/ Performance

Schools & LAESCYP 
Scrutiny Committee: 
additional areas of 
responsibility

Overview of Early Years 
for 0 to 7 year olds

Estyn monitoring update 
report

School Budgets and 
Formula

LAESCYP PIAP Progress & 
Impact Report

Report from Recovery 
Board

P
age 27



Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16
           (Please note that the Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

 (Work programme Version November 2016)

30 Nov. 
2015

14th January 2016
(SPECIAL)

25 January
2016

22 February 
2016

21 March
2016

18 April
2016

16 May
2016

Corporate 
items

Additional 
Learning 
Provision 

Youth 
Support 
Services

NEETs (Not in 
Education, 
Employment or 
Training) ITEM 
DEFERRED

Action Points 
following 
Learning & 
LAESCYP 
Performance 
Board meeting 
Nov 2015

Vulnerable Pupils 
Attainment 
(DH, TW,SB & Cllr 
HJ)

School Budgets and 
Formula
( Cllr HJ, AL & Chair 
of School Forum)

Scrutiny Report 
follow up: 
“Learning for Life 
– Basic Skills”

To be confirmed

Policy Review & 
Development

Secondary School 
Key Stage 4 
Outcomes 
2013/14 

Categorisation of 
Schools 2015/16 

Monitoring 
Reports /  
Briefing 
Reports 

Merthyr 
Youth 
forum / 
cabinet

Consultation on 
draft budget 
proposals 2016/17

JOINT MEETING
All Scrutiny 
Committees

School Service 
Level Agreements  

Chief officer – 
Learning 
attendance at 
Performance 
Board on 2nd 
November.

LAESCYP 
Services Self-
Review

NEETs (Not in 
Education, 
Employment or 
Training) ITEM 
DEFERRED

P
age 28



Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16
           (Please note that the Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

 (Work programme Version November 2016)

Dates to be confirmed:-

Key Stages 4 Pupil Outcomes
DH & Cllr HJ
 A report providing details of summary and school specific  attainment performance in 2014/15, trends over time, progress towards meeting 
targets and comparisons across Wales of pupils at the end of Key Stages 4 (16 years). The report will identify key issues that need to be 
addressed

Early Years
Adult, MIA, Community Learning & Communities First LB, DH, Lead HOS & Cllr BC
Information & Overview : A brief outline of key LAESCYP and Education issues currently delivered by Social Regeneration and an opportunity 
to scope out how the new committee will address issues.

Corporate Plan Performance Updates
Quarterly reports on Corporate Plan & Outcome Agreement performance monitoring

Additional Learning Needs/Education Other Than At Schools Review
Following a review of current approaches to the delivery of services for pupils with additional learning needs/EOTAS, a report which 
identifies the current position and make proposals for future developments and identifies progress on addressing the key issues

Nursery Admissions
 A report updating committee on progress towards reconfiguring the funding and delivery of nursery provision to meet statutory 
requirements and defining sufficiency

Home To Schools Transport
A report updating committee on progress towards reconfiguring the funding and delivery of HTST

Learning Support Assistant Review
A report detailing the outcomes of a review of the appropriateness of the current service level agreements with schools in relation to LSAs

Corporate Strategic Direction Plan (GC/BT/PW)

P
age 29



Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16
           (Please note that the Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

 (Work programme Version November 2016)

Strategic Direction (LCJ, EC, GC, LB)

Effectiveness of Governors / Outcome of Governors Survey (as suggested at 15th June meeting

P
age 30



Learning & LAESCYP Services Scrutiny Committee
Work Programme 2015/16 (23rd June 2015)

Meeting Date Subject Invitees Theme Scrutiny Focus
Governing 

Bodies Annual 
report

DH, GW &  
Cllr HJ

Schools Scrutiny & Challenge : The LAESCYP self-evaluation review  has identified the need 
to improve the effectiveness of Governing Bodies. The Governing Body annual 
report will be considered early in 2015/16 and then issues identified will be followed 
up to include (i) recruitment and retention (ii) training (iii) federation of governing 
bodies (iv) identifying and sharing effective practice

Schools & 
LAESCYP 
Scrutiny 
Committee: 
additional 
areas of 
responsibility

LB, DH, Lead 
HOS & Cllr HJ

Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

Information & Overview : A brief outline of key LAESCYP and Education issues 
currently delivered by Social Regeneration and an opportunity to scope out how the 
new committee will address issues.

(Defining The Scope Of The Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee)15th June 2015

Heolgerrig & 
Pen Y Dre 
Lessons 
Learned 
Report

Cllr HJ, GC, 
CK, LB, LJ

Pre Scrutiny 
& Follow Up 
Issues

Scrutiny & Challenge : Follow up to the Schools Scrutiny Committee meetings in 
2014 to include an outline of progress on addressing concerns and delivering the 
action plan. The report will outline whether both the Human Resource processes are 
fit for purpose as well the effectiveness of Council-wide responses to potential and 
actual school-related HR issues.

Categorisation 
of Schools

Cllr HJ, DH Schools Scrutiny & Challenge : An evaluation of the impact of the  new national 
categorisation process introduced for 2014/15 and the likely profile and trajectory of 
MTCBC schools for 2015/16

Overview of 
Early Years for 
0 to 7 year 
olds

Cllr HJ, DH, 
and lead 
officers

Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

Information & Overview : An overview of Early Years provision for 0 to 7 year olds 

13th July 2015

Estyn 
monitoring

Cllr HJ, LB, 
DH

LAESCYP Self 
Evaluation 
Framework

Information & Overview : Brief update of verbal feedback and consideration of the 
letter (if available) following Estyn’s monitoring visit on PIAP R6 and R7 during 
summer term 2015 and actions to be addressed

P
age 31



Meeting Date Subject Invitees Theme Scrutiny Focus
Commissioning 
the consortium

Cllr HJ, LB, 
DH

Education 
Department
& 
Consortium

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report detailing the current effectiveness and shortcomings 
of the consortium in relation to (i) Reports by Estyn and WAO (ii) the commissioned 
services for MTCBC and future challenges

Central South 
Consortium

Cllr HJ, LB, 
DH & 
Consortium 
Leads

Education 
Department
& 
Consortium

Scrutiny & Challenge : Scrutiny and challenge based upon the LA report and report 
by the CSC 7th September 2015

School Budgets 
and Formula

Cllr HJ, AL 
& Chair of 
School 
Forum

Schools Information, Scrutiny & Challenge:  An outline of school budgets in relation to (i) 
reserves (ii) licensed budget (iii) overspends (iv) risks (v) effectiveness of local 
authority monitoring and challenge processes. The report will also detail progress on 
the school funding formula

Schools 
Attendance At 
Scrutiny

Cllr HJ, DH, 
Head & 
Chair of 
Governors 

Schools Scrutiny & Challenge : Attendance by the headteacher and chair of governors of  
Gellifaelog Primary School. The meeting will involve a 15 minute presentation by the 
school focusing on the good features and the challenges that the school is facing. 
The Committee will also be asking the local authority officers how they identified 
what, if anything, was needed at the school and how the school responded. The 
Committee is also keen to understand how both the school and the local authority 
have made good progress together.

Key Stages 1 to 
3 Pupil 
Outcomes

Cllr HJ, DH Pupil 
Outcomes

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report providing details of summary and school specific  
attainment performance in 2014/15, trends over time, progress towards meeting 
targets and comparisons across Wales of pupils at the end of Key Stages 1 (age 7 
years),  Key Stage 2 (age 11 years) and Key Stage 3 (14 years) to include national 
literacy and numeracy tests. The report will identify key issues that need to be 
addressed

LAESCYP PIAP 
Progress & 
Impact Report

Cllr HJ, LB, 
DH, MT, SJ, 

LAESCYP 
Framework  
Self 
Evaluation

Scrutiny & Challenge:  A report detailing progress addressing all 8 recommendations 
of the Estyn LAESCYP inspection in November 2012 and the impact in terms of 
outputs and outcomes.

5th October 2015 

Report from 
Recovery Board

Chair of 
recovery 
Board

Recovery 
Board

Information: The powers for Education have been removed from the Authority and 
placed with the Recovery Board. A report on the Recovery Boards input and actions. 

P
age 32



Meeting Date Subject Invitees Theme Scrutiny Focus
LAESCYP Self 
Evaluation

Cllr HJ, GC, 
EC, LB, DH, 
Leader, 
Deputy 
Leader

LAESCYP 
Framework  
Self 
Evaluation

Scrutiny & Challenge:   Scrutiny of the LAESCYP self-evaluation in advance of the 
monitoring visit. 

2nd November 2015

Strategy on a 
Page / Plan on a 
Page.

DH Education 
department

Overview: - To introduce and discuss the Strategy on a Page / Plan on a Page.

Additional 
Learning Needs 
Provision 

Cllr HJ, DH, 
TW

Education 
department

Scrutiny & Challenge:  An review  of provision for pupils with Additional Learning 
Needs by LA and schools and the impact in terms of outputs and outcomes.

Youth Support 
Services

Cllr HJ, DH, 
and lead 
officers

Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

Scrutiny & Challenge:  A report detailing progress addressing recommendation 7 of 
the Estyn LAESCYP inspection in November 2012 and the impact in terms of outputs 
and outcomes.

30th November 2015

Merthyr Youth 
forum / cabinet

LPL and 
members of 
the Merthyr 
youth forum 
/ cabinet

Meeting with 
outside 
Organisation

Overview:- A presentation providing insight on how the Forum  sees their role, 
achievements, how they perceive opportunities for the youth of Merthyr Tydfil etc. 

Secondary 
School Key 
Stage 4 
Outcomes 
2013/14

Cllr HJ, DH Pupil 
Outcomes

Scrutiny & Challenge : Most comparative information for Key Stage 4 outcomes are 
published nationally by December each year and so this report will provide a 
summary of overall outcomes by performance indicator for 2014/15 as well as 
schools, trends over time, comparisons with other local authorities and progress 
against targets.  The report will identify key issues that need to be addressed

Categorisation 
of Schools 
2015/16

Cllr HJ, DH Schools Scrutiny & Challenge : A report detailing the categorisation of schools for 2015/16 
and improvement progress over the last 2 years to include school inspection 
outcomes during 2014/15 and a summary of the current position for all schools

25th January 2016

School Service 
Level 
Agreements

Cllr HJ, AL Pre Scrutiny & 
Follow Up 
Issues

Scrutiny & Challenge: Continuing the review of School SLAs and focusing on the 
effectiveness and impact of current SLAs, what needs to be addressed and how this is 
occurring.

P
age 33



Chief officer – 
Learning 
attendance at 
Performance 
Board on 2nd 
November.

Cllr HJ, DH Self 
Evaluation

Scrutiny & Challenge:  On 2nd November the Chief officer - Learning was subject to 
scrutiny at a Performance Board meeting, which focusses on Organisational 
Development and Corporate Strategy, with a requirement that the Chief Officer 
produces a comprehensive self-evaluation in readiness for the PB meeting. The 
process involves a referral to the appropriate scrutiny committee of appropriate 
issues highlighted at the PB meeting.

27th January 2016 
(Joint)

Consultation on 
draft budget 
proposals 
2016/17

LB, DH, HOS 
(PEI), LCJ, Cllr 
LT & Cllr HJ

Corporate 
Performance

Challenge & Overview : Referral from Cabinet for scrutiny to understand and then 
challenge proposed budget proposals for 2015/16 and beyond where appropriate

School Budgets 
and Formula

Cllr HJ, AL & 
Chair of 
School 
Forum

Schools Information, Scrutiny & Challenge: An update from September 2015 meeting 
required. An outline of school budgets in relation to (i) reserves (ii) licensed budget 
(iii) overspends (iv) risks (v) effectiveness of local authority monitoring and challenge 
processes. The report will also detail progress on the school funding formula

22nd February 2016

Action Points 
following 
Learning & 
LAESCYP 
Performance 
Board meeting 
Nov 2015. 
Update on item 
1) for this 
meeting

DH, Sarah 
Bowen

Pupil 
Outcomes

Scrutiny and Challenge: At the last Learning & LAESCYP Performance Board 5 areas 
for improvement were identified – 1) Parental Engagement (Lead Officer Sarah Bowen); 2) 
More Able and Talented Pupils (Dorothy Haines); 3) Governance & Governing Bodies 
(Dorothy Haines); 4) Collaboration (Dorothy Haines); and 5) Corporate Support Services (Glynis 
Estabanez). (These were identified in the Performance Board report to Learning & LAESCYP meeting on 25th January 

2016). Numbers 1 to 4 managed by the L&L scrutiny committee; and 5) by the 
Governance Scrutiny Committee. Above suggested by Cllr P. Williams.

P
age 34



Meeting Date Subject Invitees Theme Scrutiny Focus
Vulnerable 
Pupils 
Attainment

DH, TW,SB & 
Cllr HJ

Pupil 
Outcomes

Scrutiny & Challenge: This report will provide a summary of overall outcomes by 
performance indicator, trends over time, comparisons with other local authorities 
where possible and progress against targets for pupils who are potentially vulnerable 
for 2014/15. This includes pupils with Special Educational Needs, Looked After, ethnic 
minorities etc.  The report will also identify key issues that need to be addressed

LAESCYP 
Services Self-
Review

Cllr HJ, LB, 
DH, Lead 
HOS (PEI), 
LCJ 

Corporate 
Strategic 
Direction 

Scrutiny & Challenge : A focus on the entirety of LAESCYP services in terms of what 
services are delivered by the local authority, how effective this is, what challenges 
there are and how these will be addressed

21st March 2016

NEETs Chris Hole Pupil 
Outcomes

Scrutiny & Challenge: Comparative information for NEETs is normally published 
nationally by February as it is based upon Oct 1st outcomes. This report will provide a 
summary of overall outcomes 2015 as well as trends over the last 4 years and 
comparisons with other local authorities and progress against targets.  The report will 
identify key issues that need to be addressed and also detail the progress on 
addressing issues raised in the last report including key workers and engagement by 
other partners including Careers Wales.

18th April 2016

Scrutiny Report 
follow up: 
“Learning for 
Life – Basic 
Skills”

DH Report to 
Cabinet 
(follow up)

Scrutiny & Challenge: A joint scrutiny report was presented to Cabinet on 22nd April 
2015. “To provide a report from the investigation by the joint Task & Finish Group 
(Social Services & Social Regeneration and Schools Scrutiny Committees) about how 
best to focus on the effectiveness of the Single Integrated Plan Learning For Life 
priority in terms of basic skills development “. To follow up on report 
recommendations.

16th May 2016
To be confirmed

To be confirmed (in 
addition to June 
2015)

Adult, MIA, 
Community 
Learning &

LB, DH, Lead 
HOS & Cllr 

BC

Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

Information & Overview : A brief outline of key LAESCYP and Education issues 
currently delivered by Social Regeneration and an opportunity to scope out how the 
new committee will address issues.

P
age 35



Communities 
First

To be confirmed

Merthyr Youth 
Forum / Cabinet

DH/LPL Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

To meet with the Merthyr youth forum / cabinet, inviting them to give us an insight 
on how they see their role, achievements, how they perceive opportunities for the 
youth of Merthyr Tydfil etc.

To be confirmed

Corporate Plan 
Performance 
Updates

MT Corporate 
Performance

Scrutiny & Challenge : Quarterly reports on Corporate Plan & Outcome Agreement 
performance monitoring

To be confirmed

Nursery 
Admissions

AL Pre Scrutiny & 
Follow Up 
Issues

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report updating committee on progress towards 
reconfiguring the funding and delivery of nursery provision to meet statutory 
requirements and defining sufficiency

To be confirmed

Home To 
Schools 
Transport

AL Pre Scrutiny & 
Follow Up 
Issues

Information & Overview : A report updating committee on progress towards 
reconfiguring the funding and delivery of HTST

To be confirmed

Learning 
Support 
Assistant 
Review

Pre Scrutiny & 
Follow Up 
Issues

Information & Overview : A report detailing the outcomes of a review of the 
appropriateness of the current service level agreements with schools in relation to 
LSAs

To be confirmed

Effectiveness of 
Governors

GW/DH Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

Information & Overview : To have sight of the Governors survey. How effective are 
Governors in the overall school improvement.

To be confirmed

Human 
Resources 
Department 
Restructuring. 

Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

Information & Overview : Impact of restructure on schools i.e. better service; school 
improvement

To be confirmed

School Budgets 
(Afon Taf High 
School)

School 
Budgets

Information & Overview: Meeting 7th September 2015. Afon Taf High School 
overspent against its plan in year 1 by £60k and closed the financial year-end £342k in 
deficit. Internal audit are currently reviewing the current financial position of Afon Taf 
High School and the reasons for their large financial deficit. The committee has asked 
for sight of the report when it is available.

P
age 36



To be confirmed

Free School 
Meals 
(attainment)

Pupil 
Outcomes

Information & Overview : Meeting 7th September 2015. Meeting with CSC. One of the 
areas for improvement  “A sharper pace and urgency to focus on the achievement of 
children claiming free school meals in particular across the region, so that they 
achieve accelerated improvement against their peers”. Need to follow up on this at a 
future meeting with the CSC and the Chief Education Officer. What is the CSC doing to 
support this LEA?

To be confirmed School Balances School 
Budgets

Information & Overview: The committee requires a report on school balances with 
reference to the likely pressures on school balances in the coming financial years.

To be confirmed

Effectiveness of 
Capita 1 system 

Pupil 
Outcomes

Information & Overview: The software system Capita One provides management 
information systems for local authorities to for example measure attendance, provide 
attainment figures (trends etc), safeguarding etc. An update on the effectiveness of 
the system is required.

To be confirmed 

Loss of Pupils to 
RCT schools

Pupil 
Outcome

Information & Overview:  Committee needs to engage with the secondary schools 
and the college as the County Borough is losing pupils to RCT; and about a borough 
wide learning together initiative. This follows information received at Chair 
attendance at Service Challenge Sessions (Self Evaluation)

To be confirmed Additional 
Learning Needs

Pupil 
Outcomes

Information & Overview: The committee requires an update report on what the 
Authority and Schools are providing in relation to ALN across the County Borough.

To be confirmed 
Absenteeism Pupil 

Outcomes
Information & Overview: A report providing levels of school absenteeism, to include 
comparison with like schools and the development of any procedures to raise 
attendance. Top also meet with a member of the Absenteeism Group.

To be confirmed 

Do schools 
receive Internal 
Audit Reports? 
Do they discuss 
with the 
Governing 
Bodies

Pupil 
Outcomes / 
Governance

Information & Overview: This suggestion emanated from the Audit Committee on 9th 
November (Cllr’s Clive Jones / Kate Moran). Is there general access to schools minutes 
and agenda’s 

To be confirmed B Squared 
Assessment 
Software and 

Pupil 
Outcomes / 
Governance

Information & Overview:  At the 30/11/2015 meeting committee informed that B 
Squared Assessment Software has not been introduced in schools as yet. This 
software package will assist with collation and production of data / information in 

P
age 37



Capita 1 System relation to Provision for ALN Pupils. An update is required as to whether this software 
is now being introduced / purchased.

To be confirmed 
Greenfield 
School -t 
capacity

Pupil 
Outcomes

Information & Overview:  At the 30/11/2015 meeting committee informed 
Greenfield School is at capacity. As such are other Schools struggling with resources, 
are there more children in mainstream schools.

To be confirmed 
Invite SENCO’s 
to a Scrutiny 
meeting

Pupil 
Outcomes

Information & Overview:  Following the 30/11/2015 meeting. To get an 
understanding of the work they do and their experiences of working with Local 
Authority.

To be confirmed in 
new Work 
Programme for 
2016/17. Placed as 
standing item for 
time being.

Performance 
Board – 
Learning report 
25th January

Performance Report recommendation is “Scrutiny to schedule a reoccurring agenda item in their 
forward work programme to monitor the delivery of the agreed action points detailed 
in this report.”

To be confirmed in 
new Work 
Programme for 
2016/17

Service Level 
Agreements

Pupil 
Outcomes

Scrutiny and review:- Suggested by the Chair. Following the 25th January 2016 
meeting, the committee still wants to monitor consultation with the unions re lunches 
and breakfast clubs, and also the educational inclusion and the feedback from the 
schools forum and the schools themselves; and the impact for the local authority and 
the schools.

To be confirmed NEETS Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

NEETs going to scrutiny after the Destination Survey for 2015 is published, as the department would then 
be in a position to report on Merthyr’s performance in comparison to the rest of Wales. 

The Department (Chris Hole) highlight the following themes to Scrutiny so that it is able to explore 
further  as the coming year progresses, especially as there is a general awareness of the improvements 
seen in recent years to the overall NEETs figure  with a continued  decrease in young people identified as 
NEET which for 2015 is  1.6% as previously reported.   

 Key messages/themes

1. The council currently has access to the Merthyr Tydfil pre-release data for 2015. The full report 
is due to be published in the spring of this year however no set date is currently available. 
When published this will enable the authority to benchmark its current performance against 
the rest of Wales. 

2. However through local analysis  of trend data for the past 3 years (2013 - 2015) 

a.  An increasing number of young people are staying on in education, however 

P
age 38



significant increases have been seen in young people opting for school 6th forms 
outside of Merthyr Tydfil (excluding Greenfield)

b.  Whilst the number of young people  classified as unable to take up a post 16 
provision is small, Mental Health issues are identified as the prevailing factor   (in 
2015 70% of the current 10  unable to access provision) 

c. After initial progress  there has been a significant reduction in young people securing 
apprenticeships 

3. A further theme not covered by the Destination survey  but requiring exploration in the coming 
year is the retention of young people by sector (Work based Learning, Tertiary College etc.) 
once they have taken up a progression route after leaving school 

These suggested  themes would  give some clear priorities  for future scrutiny  meetings  within what is a 
fairly wide partnership agenda. 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 School Balances 2015/16
	Schools Balances 2015-16 APPENDIX I
	School Balances 2015-16


	4 Performance Board Action Points - Parental Engagement
	7 Forward Work Programme
	strategies on a page A4
	Learning  LAESCYP Work Programme 2015 16
	Learning LAESCYP Descriptors


